
CITY OF LEMON GROVE 
PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, February 28, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. 

Lemon Grove Community Center 
3146 School Lane, Lemon Grove, CA 

For everyone’s protection, all attendees must maintain a safe social distance and 
face coverings will be required to attend the meeting 

Planning Commission  
Robert Bailey, Chair 
Stephen Browne, Vice Chair 
Seth Smith, Commissioner 
Miranda Evans, Commissioner 
Emily Jacobs, Commissioner 

A complete agenda packet is available for review on the City’s website 

Call to Order 

Pledge of Allegiance  

Changes to the Agenda 

Public Comment  
Digitally submitted public comments received by the Planning Commission Clerk at amalone@lemongrove.ca.gov 
will not be read out-loud during the meeting. However, they will be provided to the Planning Commission and remain 
part of the meeting’s records. Per the Lemon Grove Municipal Code Section 2.14.150, live comments are allotted a 
maximum of three (3) minutes. 

Consent Calendar 
1. Approval of Planning Commission Meeting Minutes

Reference: Audrey Malone, Planning Commission Clerk  
Recommendation: Approve the Planning Commission Meeting Minutes of October 25, 2021. 

Public Hearing(s) (Note to Speakers: The Chair will ask each speaker to remain at the podium until the
Commissioners have had the opportunity to ask questions about his or her testimony.  APPEALS TO THE CITY 
COUNCIL MAY BE FILED ON FORMS AVAILABLE IN THE OFFICE OF THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DEPARTMENT.  APPEALS OF DECISIONS MUST BE FILED WITHIN TEN (10) DAYS.)

2. Minor Use Permit No. MUP-210-0002 Car Wash Appeal

Reference:  Bill Chopyk, Interim Community Development Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution denying an appeal of the Community Development Manager 
(CDM) Decision to deny Minor Use Permit MUP-210-0002 to construct and operate a car wash at 
7431 Broadway in the General Commercial (GC) zone. 

https://www.lemongrove.ca.gov/city-hall/city-council/current-city-council-meeting-agenda
mailto:amalone@lemongrove.ca.gov


City of Lemon Grove Planning Commission Meeting                                                     February 28, 2022 
 
 
Report(s) to Commission 
3. Tentative Map No. TM0-000-0064 & PDP-170-0003 Time Extensions 
 
Reference:  Bill Chopyk, Interim Community Development Manager  
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution approving a time extension of approved Tentative Map No. 
TM0-000-0064 and Planned Development Permit No. PDP-170-0003 to construct six (6) 
condominium units located at 8200 Hilltop Drive in the Residential Medium High (RMH) zone, 
extending the expiration date from January 21, 2022 to January 21, 2023. 
 
Business from the Community Development Manager 
 
Business from the Planning Commission Attorney 

 
Planning Commission Oral Reports on Meeting Attended at the Expense of the City 
 
Adjournment: 

 
AFFIDAVIT OF NOTIFICATION AND POSTING  
STATE OF CALIFORNIA     )  
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO   ) SS  
CITY OF LEMON GROVE   )  
 
I, Audrey Malone Planning Commission Clerk for the City of Lemon Grove, hereby declare under penalty of 
perjury that a copy of the above Agenda of the Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of 
Lemon Grove, California, was delivered and/or notice by email not less than 72 hours before the hour of 6:00 
pm on February 24, 2022 to the members of the governing agency, and caused the agenda to be posted on 
the City’s website at www.lemongrove.ca.gov and at Lemon Grove City Hall, 3232 Main Street Lemon Grove, 
CA 91945.  
 
/s/: Audrey Malone  
Planning Commission Clerk 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), the City of Lemon Grove will provide special 
accommodations for persons who require assistance to access, attend and/or participate in meetings of the 
City Council.  If you require such assistance, please contact the City Clerk at (619) 825-3800 or email 
amalone@lemongrove.ca.gov. A full agenda is available for public review at City Hall. 



  

 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
STAFF REPORT 

Item No.   1. 

Meeting Date:  February 28, 2022 

Submitted to:  Planning Commissioners 

Department:   City Manager’s Office 

Staff Contact:  Audrey Malone, Planning Commission Clerk; 

  amalone@lemongrove.ca.gov 

Item Title:  Approval of Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

 
Recommended Action:  Approve Planning Commission Meeting Minutes, meeting of 
October 25, 2021. 
 

Environmental Review: 
 Not subject to review  Negative Declaration 

 Categorical Exemption, Section        Mitigated Negative Declaration 

 
Fiscal Impact: None.  
  
Public Notification: None. 

mailto:amalone@lemongrove.ca.gov


MINUTES OF THE VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING  
OF THE LEMON GROVE PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, October 25, 2021 at 6 PM 

The Virtual Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Lemon Grove, California, 
took place virtually pursuant to California Governor Executive Orders N-25-20, N-29-20 and N-
35-20, and in the interest of public health and safety. City Council and other public meetings will
be held virtual through Zoom audio only to prevent and mitigate the spread and effects of COVID.

Call To Order: 
Chair Robert “Bob” Bailey called the Virtual Regular Meeting to order at 6:04 p.m. 

Present:  
Chair Bailey, Vice Chair Browne, Commissioner Evans, Commissioner Smith and 
Commissioner Jacobs.  

Pledge of Allegiance:  
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was led by Chair Bailey. 

Staff Members Present: 
Lydia Romero, City Manager, Noah Alvey, Community Development Manager, Elizabeth 
Mitchell, Planning Commission Attorney, Lieutenant Patrick McEvoy, and Audrey Malone, 
Deputy City Clerk.  

Changes to the Agenda: Noah Alvey, Community Development Manager request to hear Item 
3 after Item 1 in the interest of the public.  

Public Comment: 
Email Submitted: None. 
Live: Liana LeBaron  

Approval of Meeting Minutes: 
1. November 23, 2020 and July 26, 2021
Action: Motion by Commissioner Smith seconded by Vice Chair Browne, to approve the 
Meeting Minutes, meeting of November 23, 2020 and July 26, 2021 with the correction of 
updating the action for Item 2 on the November 23, 2020 minutes and replacing Liana Lebaron 
as a Commissioner with Emily Jacobs on the July 26, 2021 minutes.  

The motion passed by the following vote: 
Ayes: Bailey, Browne, Evans, Smith, Jacobs. 
Noes: None. 
Absent: None. 
Abstain: Jacobs (for November 23, 2020 minutes only). 

Public Hearing: 
3. Conditional Use Permit No. CUP-200-0002 – A request to add off-sale liquor sales 
(Type 21 license) at an existing convenience market located in the Transit Mixed Use (3) 
zone of the Downtown Village Specific Plan and addressed as 7785 Broadway, Lemon 
Grove

Chair Bailey introduces staff to present. 
Noah Alvey, Community Development Manger presents staff report. 
Commission asked questions of staff.  



City of Lemon Grove Planning Commission Meeting Minutes October 25, 2021 

2 

Public Hearing is opens at 6:25 p.m. 
Chair Bailey introduces Krista Garritano, applicant’s representative to present. 
Commission asked questions of the applicant’s representative.  
Public Comment: 

Email Submitted: None.  
Live: Erik Jones, Alvey Perry, Galaxy A01, Janice Hana, Tory Jones, Lyn Tooby, Alicia 
Hermitz, Dave Sullivan, David Shorey, Toge M., Peter Hermitz, Kris Reader, Krista 
Garitano. 

Noah Alvey, Community Development Manager makes final comments. 

Commissioners asked questions of staff.  

Lieutenant Patrick McEvoy with the San Diego County Sheriff’s Department presents crime 
report.   

Action: Motion by Commissioner Evans and second by Commissioner Smith to close the 
Public Hearing. 
The motion passed by the following vote: 

Ayes: Bailey, Browne, Evans, Smith, Jacobs. 
Noes: None. 
Absent: None. 

Public Hearing closed at 7:46pm. 

Commissioners deliberate. 

Action: Motion by Commissioner Evans and second by Chair Bailey to conduct a public 
hearing and adopt the resolution denying Conditional Use Permit No. CUP-200-0002. 

The motion passed by the following vote: 
Ayes: Bailey, Evans, Smith, Jacobs. 
Noes: Browne. 
Absent: None. 

Reports to Commission: 

2. General Plan Housing Element Implementation

Noah Alvey, Community Development Manger presents staff report requesting feedback from 
the Planning Commission concerning future updates to the Accessory Dwelling Unit and 
Density Bonus Ordinances. 

Commissioners have questions/comments for staff and provide feedback. 

Business from the Development Manager: None. 

Planning Commission Oral Comments and Reports on Meeting Attended at the 
Expense of the City: (Government Code Section 53232.3 (d) states that members of a Legislative Body shall
provide brief reports on meetings attended at the expense of the local agency at the next regular meeting of the 
Legislative body.) None. 



City of Lemon Grove Planning Commission Meeting Minutes October 25, 2021 

3 

Adjournment:   
There being no further business to come before the Planning Commission, Chair Bailey 
adjourns meeting at 8:41pm. 

Audrey Malone 
Planning Commission Clerk 



 MUP-210-0002 Car Wash Appeal 
 February 28, 2022 

P a g e  | 5 

 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
STAFF REPORT 

Item No.   2. 

Meeting Date:  February 28, 2022 

Submitted to:  Planning Commissioners 

Department:   Community Development Department 

Staff Contact:  Bill Chopyk, Interim Community Development Manager; 

  bchopyk@lemongrove.ca.gov 

Item Title:  Minor Use Permit No. MUP-210-0002 Car Wash Appeal 
 
Recommended Action:  Adopt a resolution (Attachment A) entitled “A Resolution 
of the Planning Commission of the City of Lemon Grove Denying an Appeal of the 
Community Development Manager’s (CDM) Decision to Deny Minor Use Permit MUP-
210-0002 to construct and operate a car wash at 7431 Broadway in the General 
Commercial (GC) zone”. 
 
Summary: On December 21, 2021, a Notice of Decision was published that the CDM 
intends to deny MUP-210-0002. On January 3, 2022, an appeal of the CDM Decision was 
filed by the applicants, Neil Capin, Jr. and Jack Campagna. Decisions of the CDM on use 
permit applications may be appealed under Section 17.28.020(I) of the Lemon Grove 
Municipal Code (LGMC). Under the powers and duties of the Planning Commission 
(LGMC 2.36.070), it shall be the initial appeal body for specified appealable staff 
decisions, including permit denials.  
 
Required Findings: The following findings must be made to approve (or deny) a Minor 
Use Permit (LGMC 17.28.052): 

1. The use is compatible with the neighborhood or the community; 
2. The use is not detrimental to the health, safety, convenience or general welfare of 

persons residing or working in the vicinity; 
3. The use complies with performance standards according to Section 17.24.080; 
4. The use is consistent with the applicable provisions of the particular zoning 

district and with the policies and standards of the general plan. 
 
  

mailto:bchopyk@lemongrove.ca.gov
http://qcode.us/codes/lemongrove/view.php?cite=section_17.24.080&confidence=6


 MUP-210-0002 Car Wash Appeal 
 February 28, 2022 

P a g e  | 5 

 

The performance standards of Section 17.24.080 include the following: 
 
     1.     Noise. All noises shall be limited so that they do not exceed the ambient noise level 
by more than five dBA or exceed seventy dBA during daytime operations. All noises shall 
comply with the Noise Abatement and Control Ordinance, LGMC Chapter 9.24. 
     2.     Glare. Bright or flashing lights or reflections shall not be visible off the premises 
and shall be shielded and positioned to contain light to the site. All lighted signs shall be 
subject to citywide sign regulations, LGMC Chapter 18.12. 
     3.     Traffic Circulation. New development must demonstrate that it will not 
substantially increase traffic. 
     4.     Vibrations. No detectable vibrations shall be permitted off the development site. 
     5.     Fire, Explosion, and Hazardous Materials. Burning waste materials in open fires 
is prohibited. Operations that involve storage, use, or transport of flammable or explosive 
materials or gases, or other hazardous materials shall be provided with adequate safety 
devices against the hazard of fire and explosion, and adequate firefighting and spill 
containment equipment and supplies standard in industry, as approved by the Fire 
Department. Such operations must be conducted in a manner which meets with the 
approval of the Fire Chief and complies with LGMC Chapter 18.44 (Water Efficient 
Landscape Ordinance) and the regulations of any other government agency with 
jurisdiction. 
     6.     Airborne Emissions. No use shall exceed the maximum permissible emissions 
standards established by the San Diego County Air Pollution Control District. 
     7.     Liquid and Solid Wastes. No discharge shall be permitted of any materials of such 
nature as can contaminate any water supply, interfere with bacterial processes in sewage 
treatment, or otherwise cause the emission of dangerous or offensive elements into any 
public sewer, private sewage disposal system, stream, or ground. 
     8.     Electrical Disturbance. No activities shall be permitted that emit electrical 
disturbance affecting the operation at any point of any equipment other than that of the 
creator of such disturbance, according to the standards of the Federal Communications 
Commission, as amended. 
     9.     Radioactivity. No activities shall be permitted which utilize fissionable or 
radioactive material if their use results at any time in the release or emission of any 
fissionable or radioactive material into the atmosphere, the ground, or sewage systems, 
according to the standards of the Federal Nuclear Regulatory Commission, as amended. 
 
Discussion:  The property at 7431 Broadway was previously used for retail commercial, 
including, among other things, taco shops, barber shop and a smoke shop. Beginning 
2017, the former property owners allowed two illegal marijuana dispensaries to be 
established on the property.   After several years of code enforcement action to vacate the 
dispensaries, the City went to court to have the property owner cease the illegal dispensary 
operations; at that time the former property owner abandoned the property.  The property 
is currently vacant, fenced and in disrepair.  The new owner of the property applied for a 

http://qcode.us/codes/lemongrove/view.php?cite=section_17.24.080&confidence=6
http://qcode.us/codes/lemongrove/view.php?cite=chapter_9.24&confidence=6
http://qcode.us/codes/lemongrove/view.php?cite=chapter_18.12&confidence=6
http://qcode.us/codes/lemongrove/view.php?cite=chapter_18.44&confidence=6


 MUP-210-0002 Car Wash Appeal 
 February 28, 2022 

P a g e  | 5 

 

Minor Use Permit (MUP) to demolish the existing buildings and construct a new drive-
through car wash.  
 
After thorough review of MUP-210-0002, the CDM intended to deny the MUP. However, 
the applicant appealed the CDM’s decision. Staff made the following findings to deny the 
MUP-210-0002: 
 

1. The use is incompatible with the neighborhood. The land uses surrounding 
the subject site include residential structures that are accessed from Pacific Ave. 
and immediately south of the subject site. The closest residential structure is 
approximately 15 feet from the southerly property line of the proposed car wash 
site. The proximity of the drive-through to nearby residential structures and the 
potential for cars to create disturbing, excessive or offensive noise, car exhaust 
from idling engines, and stacking of vehicles causing congestion will result in the 
use being incompatible with the surrounding neighborhood and the community. 
 

2. The use is detrimental to the health, safety, convenience or general 
welfare of persons residing or working in the vicinity. The proposed car 
wash will be detrimental to the general welfare of persons residing in nearby 
residential structures because their close proximity to the car wash and potential 
noise impacts from cars accessing the site and creating disturbing, excessive or 
offensive noise, car exhaust from idling engines and stacking of vehicles, causing 
discomfort or annoyance in accordance with LGMC Section 9.24.160. 
 

3. The use does not comply with performance standards according to 
Section 17.24.080. The applicant submitted a noise study (Eilar Associates, Inc., 
April 28, 2021) confirming the proposed use complies or will be made to comply 
with applicable performance standards; however, cars utilizing the car wash may 
generate noise that exceeds the ambient noise level by more than five decibels or 
exceed 70 decibels during daytime operations. The applicant submitted an updated 
noise study by Eilar Associates, Inc. dated January 14, 2022 (Attachment B) that 
includes an analysis of noise generated from stacked idling vehicles. Although the 
noise study concludes that noise impacts from the proposed on-site equipment and 
idling vehicles are not expected to exceed City of Lemon Grove property line noise 
limits at surrounding property lines, staff remains concerned about noise 
exceeding 50 dB on adjacent residences from the car wash equipment, and stacked 
cars revving their engines and playing loud music (not addressed in the 1/14/22 
Eilar noise study).  The car wash is expected to generate 150-200 vehicle trips per 
day, which would not significantly impact the traffic level of service on Broadway. 
However, turning movements are limited by one-way in and one-way out due to 
the raised median on Broadway, and a tight right-hand turn to enter the vehicle 
stacking area.  



 MUP-210-0002 Car Wash Appeal 
 February 28, 2022 

P a g e  | 5 

 

 
4. The use is inconsistent with applicable provisions of the particular 

zoning district and with policies and standards of the general plan. 
Policy 5.5 of the General Plan states: “Promote development that enhances and is 
compatible with the surrounding environs.” The proposed use will generate 
disturbing, excessive or offensive noise from cars, fumes from idling engines, and 
congestion, which will result in the use being incompatible with the surrounding 
residential environs. 

 
Furthermore, staff recommended that the applicant hold a community meeting to gage 
the community reaction to a car wash next to a residential neighborhood. The applicant 
declined to hold a community meeting. 
 
The applicant provided a response letter including 3 support letters (2 unsigned) and 34 
postcards supporting the proposed car wash (Attachment C). The project site plan, 
building elevations and landscaping plan are included in Attachment D.   
 
Environmental Review: 

 Not subject to review  Negative Declaration 

 Categorical Exemption, Section 15301  Mitigated Negative Declaration 

Fiscal Impact: None 
 
Public Notification: The Notice of Public Hearing for this item was published in the 
February 18, 2022 edition of the East County Californian and mailed to all property 
owners within 500 feet of the subject property. The City of Lemon Grove received no 
comments in response to the Notice of Public Hearing and Environmental Analysis at the 
time this staff report was prepared. At the time of the public hearing, Staff will provide 
the Planning Commission with any comments received after the date this Staff report is 
prepared.  
 
Staff Recommendation: Adopt a resolution (Attachment A) entitled “A Resolution 
of the Planning Commission of the City of Lemon Grove Denying an Appeal of the 
Community Development Manager’s (CDM) Decision to Deny Minor Use Permit MUP-
210-0002 to construct and operate a car wash at 7431 Broadway in the General 
Commercial (GC) zone”.  
 
Attachments:  
Attachment A – Draft Resolution 
Attachment B – Updated Acoustical Analysis (Eilar Associates, Inc., January 14, 2022) 
Attachment C – Applicant response letter, 3 support letters and 34 postcards 
Attachment D – Project Site Plan, Elevations, and Landscaping Plan    



 MUP-210-0002 Car Wash Appeal 
 February 28, 2022 

P a g e  | 5 

 

Attachment A 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022- _____ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISION OF THE CITY OF LEMON 
GROVE DENYING AN APPEAL OF THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

MANAGER’S (CDM) DECISION TO DENY MINOR USE PERMIT MUP-210-
0002 TO CONSTRUCT AND OPERATE A CAR WASH AT 7431 BROADWAY IN 

THE GENERAL COMMERCIAL (GC) ZONE 
 

WHEREAS, the applicant, Neil Capin, Jr. and Jack Campagna, filed an 

application for a Minor Use Permit (MUP-210-0001) on February 10, 2021, a request to 

construct and operate a car wash at 7431 Broadway, Lemon Grove, California; and 

WHEREAS, the subject property is located in the General Commercial (GC) 

zoning district and has a General Plan Land Use designation of Retail Commercial; and 

WHEREAS, the GC zone allows for “Vehicle Service/Maintenance” which 

includes car washing services with an approval of a Minor Use Permit; and 

WHEREAS, City staff recommended that the applicant conduct a community 

meeting with surrounding property owners and residents due to the close proximity of 

the proposed use and nearby residential structures in order to obtain feedback regarding 

the proposed use and to address potential issues of incompatibility, including without 

limitation, increased noise, fumes, traffic circulation, and stacking congestion; and 

WHEREAS, on November 9, 2021, the applicant’s representative confirmed that 

the applicant decided not to convene a community meeting prior to a decision by the 

CDM; and 

WHEREAS, a Notice of Decision of the Community Development Manager of 

the City of Lemon Grove Denying Minor Use Permit MUP-210-0002 to construct and 

operate a car wash at 7431 Broadway, Lemon Grove, California was published on 

December 21, 2021; and 

 WHEREAS, the Applicant filed an appeal of the CDM’s decision on January 3, 

2022. Staff decisions on use permit applications may be appealed under Section 

17.28.020(I) of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code (LGMC); and  



 MUP-210-0002 Car Wash Appeal 
 February 28, 2022 

P a g e  | 5 

 

WHEREAS, under the powers and duties of the planning commission (LGMC 

2.36.070), the planning commission shall be the initial appeal body for all appealable staff 

decisions; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the 

City of Lemon Grove, California hereby denies the Applicant’s appeal of the CDM’s 

decision to Deny Minor Use Permit MUP-210-0002 to construct and operate a car wash 

at 7431 Broadway. This denial is based on the following findings: 

1.  The use is incompatible with the neighborhood or the community. The land uses 

surrounding the subject site include residential structures that are accessed from Pacific 

Ave. and immediately south of the subject site. The closest residential structure is 

approximately 15 feet from the southerly property line of the proposed car wash site. The 

proximity of the drive-through to nearby residential structures and the potential for cars 

to create disturbing, excessive or offensive noise, car exhaust from idling engines, and 

stacking of vehicles causing congestion will result in the use being incompatible with the 

surrounding neighborhood and the community.  

2.  The use is detrimental to the health, safety, convenience or general welfare of 

persons residing or working in the vicinity. The proposed car wash will be detrimental to 

the general welfare of persons residing in nearby residential structures because their close 

proximity to the car wash and potential noise impacts from cars accessing the site and 

creating disturbing, excessive or offensive noise, car exhaust from idling engines and 

stacking of vehicles, causing discomfort or annoyance which would be a violation of 

Lemon Grove Municipal Code Section 9.24.160. 

3.  The use does not comply with performance standards according to Section 

17.24.080. Noise levels would exceed 50 dB on adjacent residences from the car wash 

equipment, and stacked cars revving their engines and playing loud music. Turning 

movements are limited by one-way in and one-way out due to the raised median on 

Broadway, and a tight right-hand turn to enter the vehicle stacking area. 

  



 MUP-210-0002 Car Wash Appeal 
 February 28, 2022 

P a g e  | 5 

 

 

4.  The use is inconsistent with applicable provisions of the particular zoning 

district and with policies and standards of the general plan. Policy 5.5 of the General Plan 

states: “Promote development that enhances and is compatible with the surrounding 

environs.” The proposed use will generate disturbing, excessive or offensive noise from 

cars, fumes from idling engines, and congestion which will result in the use being 

incompatible with the surrounding residential environs. 

5.  Denial of a Minor Use Permit is not a “project” pursuant to California Public 

Resources Code § 21065 or the California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines (Section 

15378) and there is no possibility that the denial will have a significant impact on the 

physical environment, making this action exempt from environmental review 

requirements. 

   



 MUP-210-0002 Car Wash Appeal 
 February 28, 2022 

P a g e  | 5 

 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED on February 28, 2022, the Planning Commission of 

the City of Lemon Grove, California, adopted Resolution No. 2022- _____, passed by the 

following vote: 

 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSENT: 

 ABSTAIN: 

       

      __________________________ 

      Robert “Bob” Bailey, Chair 

Attest: 

 

__________________________ 

Audrey Malone, Planning Commission Clerk 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

__________________________ 

Elizabeth Mitchell, Planning Commission Attorney  

 

 



Acoustical Analysis Report for 
Lemon Grove Wash N Go 

Prepared for: 
Wash N Go 

Attention: Neil Capin 
1835 Palm Avenue 

San Diego, California 92154 
Phone: 520-245-1575 

Prepared by: 
Eilar Associates, Inc. 

210 South Juniper Street, Suite 100 
Escondido, California 92025 

Phone: 760-738-5570 
info@eilarassociates.com 

Job # S201209.3 

January 14, 2022 

Attachment B



Table of Contents 

Page 

1.0 Executive Summary 1 

2.0 Introduction 1    

2.1  Project Description 
2.2 Project Location 
2.3 Applicable Noise Regulations 

3.0 Environmental Setting 2 

3.1 Existing Noise Environment 
3.2 Future Noise Environment 

4.0 Methodology and Equipment 4 

4.1 Methodology  
4.2 Measurement Equipment 

5.0 Noise and Vibration Impacts 5 

5.1 Permanent Operational Noise Impacts 
5.2 Mechanical Equipment Vibration Impacts 
5.3 Temporary Construction Impacts 

6.0 Conclusion 7

7.0 Certification 8

8.0 References 8 

Figures

1. Vicinity Map 
2. Assessor’s Parcel Map 
3. Satellite Aerial Photograph Showing Noise Measurement Location 
4. Topographic Map 
5. Satellite Aerial Photograph Showing Site Plan, Equipment Noise Contours, & Receiver Locations

Appendices 

A. Project Plans 
B. Pertinent Sections of the City of Lemon Grove Municipal Code 
C. Manufacturer Data Sheets 
D. CadnaA Analysis Data and Results  
E. Construction Noise Calculations



Eilar Associates, Inc. 
Acoustical and Environmental Consulting Services 

Acoustical Analysis Report for Lemon Grove Wash N Go • Job # S201209.3 • January 14, 2022 Page 1 

1.0 Executive Summary

The proposed project, Lemon Grove Wash N Go, consists of the construction of a new car wash facility.  The 
project site is located at 7431 Broadway in the City of Lemon Grove, California. 

The purpose of this report is to assess noise impacts from proposed operations at the facility and to determine 
if mitigation is necessary and feasible to reduce project-related noise impacts to meet applicable noise limits.  
Noise limits specified within the City of Lemon Grove Municipal Code must be met at neighboring property 
lines.   

Noise impacts from the proposed on-site equipment are not expected to exceed City of Lemon Grove property 
line noise limits at surrounding property lines, as designed.  Calculations show that, with the proposed sound 
wall in place, constructed to the minimum standards and configuration detailed herein, equipment noise levels 
are expected to meet applicable noise limits at all surrounding property lines. 

Noise from temporary construction activities will not exceed the applicable construction noise limits in Section 
9.24.120 of the City of Lemon Grove Municipal Code at any surrounding residential property line.  
Construction is prohibited between the hours of 7 p.m. and 7 a.m. and on Sundays or legal holidays.  Standard 
construction noise control methods including adhering to permissible hours of operation, maintaining 
equipment in proper operating condition, and placing staging areas at furthest locations from off-site, sensitive 
receptors, will be sufficient for reducing noise impacts to surrounding sensitive receptors.   

2.0 Introduction

This acoustical analysis report is submitted to satisfy the noise requirements of the City of Lemon Grove.  Its 
purpose is to assess noise impacts from on-site project-related mechanical noise sources, and to determine if 
mitigation is necessary to reduce the noise impacts to be compliant with applicable noise limits.  Temporary 
construction noise impacts were also evaluated. 

All noise level or sound level values presented herein are expressed in terms of decibels (dB), with A-weighting, 
abbreviated "dBA," to approximate the hearing sensitivity of humans. Time-averaged noise levels are expressed 
by the symbol “LEQ.”  Unless a different time period is specified, “LEQ” implies a period of one hour.  Some 
of the data may also be presented as octave-band-filtered and/or A-octave-band-filtered data, which are a series 
of sound spectra centered about each stated frequency, with half of the bandwidth above and half of the 
bandwidth below each stated frequency.  This data is typically used for machinery noise analysis and barrier 
calculations.  

Sound pressure is the actual noise experienced by a human or registered by a sound level instrument.  When 
sound pressure is used to describe a noise source, the distance from the noise source must be specified in order 
to provide complete information.  Sound power, on the other hand, is a specialized analytical metric used to 
provide information without the distance requirement and may be used to calculate the sound pressure at any 
desired distance. 

2.1 Project Description

The proposed project, Lemon Grove Wash N Go, consists of the demolition of on-site structures and the 
construction of a new car wash facility.  The project will incorporate an automatic car wash tunnel.  The 
proposed hours of operation are 7 a.m. to 9 p.m. daily.   



Eilar Associates, Inc. 
Acoustical and Environmental Consulting Services 

Acoustical Analysis Report for Lemon Grove Wash N Go • Job # S201209.3 • January 14, 2022 Page 2 

The proposed car wash equipment is the primary focus of this analysis, as it is expected to generate the most 
noise on site.  Noise impacts from cars idling outside the entrance of the tunnel have also been evaluated.  A 
central vacuum system is also proposed, however, as motors will be fully enclosed, noise from the vacuums is 
expected to be insignificant and has therefore not been included in this analysis.  For additional project details 
and equipment positioning, please refer to the project plans, provided in Appendix A. 

2.2 Project Location  

The subject property is located at 7431 Broadway in the City of Lemon Grove, California.  The Assessor’s 
Parcel Number is 480-084-31-00.  The site is currently occupied by commercial structures to be demolished.  
For a graphical representation of the site, please refer to the Vicinity Map, Assessor’s Parcel Map, Satellite Aerial 
Photograph, and Topographic Map, provided as Figures 1 through 4, respectively. 

2.3 Applicable Noise Regulations 

The noise regulations applicable to this project are contained within the City of Lemon Grove Municipal Code.  
The current and proposed zoning of the subject property is GC (General Commercial).  Properties to the north 
(across Broadway), east, and west are also zoned GC.  Although properties to the south appear to be primarily 
multifamily residential land uses, the zoning of these properties is also GC. 

Noise impacts at neighboring properties must meet the noise regulations contained within the City of Lemon 
Grove Municipal Code, which specifies average hourly noise limits based on the zoning of the properties in 
question.  Properties with commercial zoning have daytime noise limits of 60 dBA between the hours of 7 a.m. 
and 7 p.m., evening noise limits of 55 dBA between the hours of 7 p.m. and 10 p.m., and nighttime noise limits 
of 50 dBA between the hours of 10 p.m. and 7 a.m.   As the proposed project is anticipated to operate during 
the daytime and evening hours, the most restrictive noise limit that would apply at neighboring properties would 
be an hourly average noise level of 55 dBA.  It should also be noted that the noise limits for multifamily 
residential zones are also 60 dBA and 55 dBA for daytime and evening hours, respectively.  

In addition, Section 9.24.120 of the City of Lemon Grove Municipal Code states that construction activity is 
prohibited between the hours of 7 p.m. and 7 a.m. and on Sundays or legal holidays.  During permissible hours 
of operation, noise levels from construction activity must be limited to an eight-hour average of no greater than 
75 dBA at any property line zoned for residential use.  

For pertinent sections of the City of Lemon Grove Municipal Code, please refer to Appendix B. 

3.0 Environmental Setting 

3.1 Existing Noise Environment 

An on-site inspection was conducted on the afternoon of Tuesday, December 29, 2020.  The weather 
conditions were as follows: partly cloudy skies, winds at 2-3 mph, high humidity, and temperatures in the mid-
50s.  An ambient noise measurement was taken approximately 50 feet south of the Broadway centerline.  The 
microphone position was approximately five feet above the existing grade.  Noise sources present during this 
measurement included noise from traffic on Broadway, and minor impacts from the trolley and nearby backup 
alarms.  After a continuous 10-minute sound level measurement, no changes in the LEQ were observable and 
results were recorded.  The measured noise level is shown in Table 1, and a graphical representation of the 
noise measurement location is shown in Figure 3. 



Eilar Associates, Inc. 
Acoustical and Environmental Consulting Services 

Acoustical Analysis Report for Lemon Grove Wash N Go • Job # S201209.3 • January 14, 2022 Page 3 

Table 1.  On-Site Noise Measurement Conditions and Results

Date Tuesday, December 29, 2020 

Time 9:47 a.m. – 9:57 a.m. 

Conditions
Partly cloudy skies, wind at 2-3 mph, 

temperature in the mid-50s with high humidity 

Measured Noise Level 65.0 dBA LEQ

3.2 Future Noise Environment

The future noise environment in the vicinity of the project site will be primarily a result of the same noise 
sources, as well as the noise generated by the proposed equipment on site, which includes car wash tunnel 
equipment.  Noise impacts from cars idling outside the tunnel entrance have also been evaluated.  A central 
vacuum system is also proposed, however, as motors will be fully enclosed, noise from the vacuums is expected 
to be insignificant and has therefore not been included in this analysis.   

The primary source of noise in the car wash tunnel is the dryers.  Exact dryer units have not been decided at 
this time.  The proposed units to be installed in the tunnel is anticipated to be similar to the 90 HP Advantage 
Drying System manufactured by Aerodry.  Manufacturer noise data shows that this configuration produces a 
noise level of 84 dBA at a distance of 3.3 feet (1 meter) from the tunnel exit.  Noise levels at the tunnel entrance 
were determined through CadnaA noise modeling of the tunnel shape and entrance opening size using a typical 
car wash equipment configuration.  Further explanation may be provided upon request.  Noise levels of the 
proposed equipment are shown in Table 2.  Please refer to Appendices A and C for more details. 

Noise levels from an idling minivan were measured by Eilar Associates and are shown in Table 3.  This 
measurement is considered representative of the average vehicle to be queued at the entrance, with some 
vehicles being louder and others quieter.  

No detailed construction information was available at the time of this analysis, however, based on professional 
experience, it is assumed that on-site construction activities will take place as a single phase consisting of the 

Table 2. Sound Pressure Level of Proposed Equipment at 1 meter 

Source 
Sound Pressure Level at Octave Band Frequency (dB) 

Total Sound 
Pressure 

(dBA) at 3.3 
feet 

63 125 250 500 1000 2000 4000 8000 

90 HP Advantage 
Drying System 

85 81 77 86 74 73 69 64 84 

Table 3.  Sound Pressure Level of Idling Vehicle at 11 feet 

Source 
Sound Pressure Level at Octave Band Frequency (dB) 

Total Sound 
Pressure 

(dBA) at 11 
feet 

63 125 250 500 1000 2000 4000 8000 

Minivan 59 55 50 47 47 44 41 39 52 



Eilar Associates, Inc. 
Acoustical and Environmental Consulting Services 

Acoustical Analysis Report for Lemon Grove Wash N Go • Job # S201209.3 • January 14, 2022 Page 4 

following stages: demolition and grading, foundation, building construction, and paving.  Demolition and site 
preparation/grading are typically the activities that generate the highest noise levels, and therefore, these 
activities are the focus of this brief analysis.  Please refer to Table 4 for anticipated on-site construction 
equipment during the worst-case stage of construction with noise levels and duty cycles for each piece of 
equipment.  Construction equipment noise levels were provided by the UK Department for Environment, 
Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA), and duty cycle information was taken from the Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA) (see references).  Although FHWA offers noise levels of construction equipment, 
professional experience and observations of construction activity by Eilar Associates, Inc. suggest that the noise 
levels given by DEFRA are more representative of equipment noise levels that would be generated at smaller 
scale construction sites such as the proposed project. 

4.0 Methodology and Equipment 

4.1 Methodology 

4.1.1 Cadna Noise Modeling Software

Modeling of the outdoor noise environment is accomplished using CadnaA Version 2020, which is a model-
based computer program developed by DataKustik for predicting noise impacts in a wide variety of conditions.  
CadnaA (Computer Aided Noise Abatement) assists in the calculation, presentation, assessment, and alleviation 
of noise exposure.  It allows for the input of project information such as noise source data, barriers, structures, 
and topography to create a detailed model and uses the most up-to-date calculation standards to predict outdoor 
noise impacts.  Noise standards used by CadnaA that are particularly relevant to this analysis include ISO 9613 
(Attenuation of sound during propagation outdoors).  CadnaA provides results that are in line with basic 
acoustical calculations for distance attenuation and barrier insertion loss.   

4.1.2 Formulas and Calculations 

Decibel Addition 

To determine the combined logarithmic noise level of two known noise source levels, the values are converted 
to the base values, added together, and then converted back to the final logarithmic value, using the following 
formula: 

)101010log(10 10/10/210/1 LNLL
CL 

Table 4.  Typical Construction Equipment Noise Levels 

Noise Source Duty Cycle (%) 
Calculated Noise Level (LMAX) at 

50 feet (dBA) 

Backhoe 40% 64 

Front Loader 40% 76 

Dump Truck 40% 75 

Excavator 40% 75 



Eilar Associates, Inc. 
Acoustical and Environmental Consulting Services 

Acoustical Analysis Report for Lemon Grove Wash N Go • Job # S201209.3 • January 14, 2022 Page 5 

where LC = the combined noise level (dB), and 
LN = the individual noise sources (dB). 

Attenuation Due to Distance 

Attenuation due to distance is calculated by the equation: 

)log(20
1

2
12

D

D
SPLSPL 

where SPL1 = Known sound pressure level at known distance, 
SPL2 = Calculated sound pressure level at distance, 
D1 = Distance from source to location of known sound pressure level, and 
D2 = Distance from source to location of calculated sound pressure level. 

This is identical to the more commonly used reference of 6 dB reduction for every doubling of distance. This 
equation does not take into account reduction in noise due to atmospheric absorption. 

4.2 Measurement Equipment

Some or all of the following equipment was used at the site to measure existing noise levels: 

 Larson Davis Model LxT Type 1 Sound Level Meter, Serial # 4084 

 Larson Davis Model CAL200 Type 1 Calibrator, Serial # 16454 

The sound level meter was field calibrated immediately prior to the noise measurement and checked afterward 
to ensure accuracy. All sound level measurements conducted and presented in this report, in accordance with 
the regulations, were made with a sound level meter that conforms to the American National Standards Institute 
specifications for sound level meters (ANSI S1.4). All instruments are maintained with National Bureau of 
Standards traceable calibration, per the manufacturers’ standards. 

5.0 Noise and Vibration Impacts 

5.1 Permanent Operational Noise Impacts 

Noise levels of the proposed on-site mechanical equipment and vehicle idling were calculated using Cadna at 
surrounding properties.  These receivers represent the nearest affected noise-sensitive locations, and therefore, 
any other potential receivers would be exposed to lower noise levels as they will receive additional attenuation 
due to distance and shielding from intervening structures.  Operational noise levels were calculated considering 
shielding provided by the proposed buildings and sound barrier walls on site.  Ground level receivers (R1, R2, 
R4, R5, and R6) were calculated at a height of five feet above grade.  To estimate the noise levels at second-
floor facades of residential buildings to the southeast, receiver R3 was calculated at a height of 15 feet above 
grade.  Please refer to Figure 5 for a graphical representation of evaluated receiver locations. 

In addition, appropriate duty cycles were applied to the equipment operating on site.  According to project 
proponents, the car wash tunnel has a two-car maximum capacity.  It can be expected that, for a car wash of 
this type, the dryers would be in use for a maximum of 67% of the time when at full capacity.  This duty cycle 
assumes two cars within the tunnel, 20 second drying time, and a total car wash time of one minute.  Vehicular 
noise was modeled as three vehicles idling with a 100% duty cycle. 



Eilar Associates, Inc. 
Acoustical and Environmental Consulting Services 

Acoustical Analysis Report for Lemon Grove Wash N Go • Job # S201209.3 • January 14, 2022 Page 6 

Project plans show a sound wall along the south and east property lines, at a height of twelve feet above grade.  
The barrier extends 40 feet along the south property line and 90 feet along the east property line.  This barrier 
has been incorporated into the acoustical model.  Results of the analysis are shown in Table 5 below.  Receiver 
locations and equipment noise contours are shown in Figure 5.  Additional information is shown in Appendix 
D. 

As shown above, with the barrier at a height of twelve feet above grade, with the configuration described herein 
and shown in Figure 5, equipment noise levels are expected to meet applicable noise limits of the City of Lemon 
Grove at all surrounding property lines.  In order to be effective, the barrier must be constructed to the 
standards listed below. 

According to project proponents, the sound wall is to be constructed of steel columns and horizontal steel 
members with a stucco finish on the subject property side of the barrier.  The proposed assembly is sufficient 
for attenuating noise.  Special care should be taken to ensure any seams or cracks are filled. 

The car wash itself is proposed to be constructed primarily of stucco and a base of veneer stone over a metal 
frame.  The proposed exterior wall assembly is sufficient for attenuating noise.  Additionally, any windows 
proposed in the wall of the car wash tunnel should be appropriately sealed with acoustical sealant. 

5.2 Mechanical Equipment Vibration Impacts 

The proposed project is not expected to include any significant vibration inducing equipment.  As these types 
of equipment will not be present, excessive levels of groundborne vibration are not expected to be received by 
any persons.   

5.3 Temporary Construction Impacts 

According to Section 9.24.120 of the City of Lemon Grove Municipal Code, construction activity is prohibited 
between the hours of 7 p.m. and 7 a.m. and on Sundays or legal holidays.  During permissible hours of 
operation, noise levels from construction activity must be limited to an eight-hour average of no greater than 
75 dBA at any residential property line.  

Estimated construction noise impacts have been calculated assuming the typical pieces of equipment shown in 
Table 4 would be operating on site during the demolition and site preparation/grading process.  Noise levels 
were calculated using the methodology and formulas detailed in Section 4.1.2 at the nearest residential receivers 
(located to the south of the project site).  In order to assess average noise levels during construction activity, 

Table 5.  Calculated Noise Levels of Proposed Operations 

Receiver Receiver Location Noise Limit (dBA) Equipment Noise Level (dBA)

R1 East Property Line 55 38.7 

R2 Southeast Property Line 55 48.7 

R3 Southeast 2nd Story Facade 55 49.5 

R4 South Property Line 55 39.9 

R5 Southwest Property Line 55 53.5 

R6 West Property Line 55 45.8 



Eilar Associates, Inc. 
Acoustical and Environmental Consulting Services 

Acoustical Analysis Report for Lemon Grove Wash N Go • Job # S201209.3 • January 14, 2022 Page 7 

noise levels have been calculated considering the center of construction activity located at the center of the 
parcel, at approximately 67 feet from the nearest residential property line to the south.  Based on the typical 
noise levels and duty cycles of construction equipment, when construction is operating in this location, average 
noise levels over the course of a typical eight-hour workday at the nearest residential property line will be 
approximately 74 dBA, which is below the 75 dBA noise limit set by the City of Lemon Grove.  Any other 
surrounding noise-sensitive receivers are located at a greater distance from proposed construction activity, and 
therefore will be exposed to lesser noise impacts due to additional distance attenuation and shielding provided 
by intervening structures.

Despite the fact that noise impacts will remain in compliance with the construction noise limit found in Section 
9.24.120 of the City of Lemon Grove Municipal Code, the following “good practice” measures should still be 
practiced as a courtesy to residential neighbors. 

1. Staging areas should be placed as far as possible from residential receivers.  Ideally, staging areas would 
be located on the north side of the site. 

2. Place stationary equipment in locations that will have a lesser noise impact on nearby sensitive 
receivers. 

3. Turn off equipment when not in use. 

4. Limit the use of enunciators or public address systems, except for emergency notifications. 

5. Equipment used in construction should be maintained in proper operating condition, and all loads 
should be properly secured, to prevent rattling and banging. 

6. Schedule work to avoid simultaneous construction activities that both generate high noise levels. 

7. Use equipment with effective mufflers. 

8. Minimize the use of backup alarms. 

With operating hours limited to those permitted by Section 9.24.120 of the City of Lemon Grove Municipal 
Code and adherence to the general good practice construction noise control techniques, temporary construction 
noise impacts will be less than significant at surrounding properties.  No specific mitigation is required for 
reducing construction noise impacts to off-site, sensitive receptors. 

6.0 Conclusion 

Noise impacts from the proposed on-site operations are not expected to exceed City of Lemon Grove property 
line noise limits at surrounding property lines, as designed.  Calculations show that, with the proposed sound 
wall in place, constructed to the minimum standards and configuration detailed herein, equipment noise levels 
are expected to meet applicable noise limits at all surrounding property lines. 

Noise from temporary construction activities will not exceed the applicable construction noise limits of Section 
9.24.120 of the City of Lemon Grove Municipal Code at any surrounding residential property line.  
Construction is prohibited between the hours of 7 p.m. and 7 a.m. and on Sundays or legal holidays.  Standard 
construction noise control methods including adhering to permissible hours of operation, maintaining 
equipment in proper operating condition, and placing staging areas at furthest locations from off-site, sensitive 
receptors, will be sufficient for reducing noise impacts to surrounding sensitive receptors.   



Eilar Associates, Inc. 
Acoustical and Environmental Consulting Services 

Acoustical Analysis Report for Lemon Grove Wash N Go • Job # S201209.3 • January 14, 2022 Page 8 

This analysis is based upon current anticipated equipment noise levels for the Aerodry 90 HP system, which is 
proposed for use at this project site. Substitution of equipment with higher noise emission levels may invalidate 
the recommendations of this study.  These conclusions and recommendations are based on the best and most 
current project-related information available at the time this study was prepared. 

7.0 Certification

All recommendations for noise control are based on the best information available at the time our consulting 
services are provided.  However, as there are many factors involved in sound transmission, and Eilar Associates 
has no control over the construction, workmanship, or materials, Eilar Associates is specifically not liable for 
final results of any recommendations or implementation of the recommendations. 

This report is based on the related project information received and measured noise levels and represents a true 
and factual analysis of the acoustical impact issues associated with the Lemon Grove Wash N Go project, 
located at 7431 Broadway in the City of Lemon Grove, California.  This report was prepared by Rachael Cowell 
and Amy Hool. 

Rachael S. Cowell, INCE Amy Hool, INCE 
Acoustical Consultant President/CEO 

8.0 References 

City of Lemon Grove Municipal Code, Chapter 9.24: Noise Abatement and Control. 

UK Department for Environment, Food, and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) Construction Noise Database. 

DataKustik, CadnaA (Computer Aided Noise Abatement), Version 2021. 

U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Highway Administration, Construction Noise Handbook, 
Construction Equipment Noise Levels and Ranges. 



Figures 



Noise Measurement
Location

Project Location

50 feet

N

Two-Line Figure Name
Center Left Point: x = 3”, y = 1”

Job # 

TEXT
Job # 

Three-Line Figure Name
Center Left Point: x = 3”, y = 1”

Four-Line Figure Name
Center Left Point: x = 3”, y = 1”

TEXT
TEXT
Job # 

Eilar Associates, Inc.
210 South Juniper Street, Suite 100

Escondido, California 92025
760-738-5570

Vicinity Map
Job #S201209

Figure 1

N



San Diego County
Assessor’s 

Parcel Number:

480-084-31-00
 

Noise Measurement
Location

xxxxxxxxxx

N

50 feet

Project Location

50 feet

N

Job # 

Two-Line Figure Name
Center Left Point: x = 3”, y = 1”

Three-Line Figure Name
Center Left Point: x = 3”, y = 1”

TEXT
Job # 

Four-Line Figure Name

TEXT
TEXT
Job # 

Center Left Point: x = 3”, y = 1”

Job # S201209
Assessor’s Parcel Map

Figure 2210 South Juniper Street, Suite 100
Eilar Associates, Inc.

760-738-5570
Escondido, California 92025

N

4800843100



Project Location

Satellite Aerial Photograph Showing Noise Measurement Location
Job # S201209

Figure 3

Eilar Associates, Inc.
210 South Juniper Street, Suite 100

Escondido, California 92025
760-738-5570

N

Noise Measurement
Location



Project Location

Topographic Map
Job # S201209

Figure 4

Eilar Associates, Inc.
210 South Juniper Street, Suite 100

Escondido, California 92025
760-738-5570

Noise Measurement
Location

N

50 feet

Project Location

50 feet

N

N

Two-Line Figure Name
Center Left Point: x = 3”, y = 1”

Job # 

Three-Line Figure Name
Center Left Point: x = 3”, y = 1”

TEXT
Job # 

TEXT
Center Left Point: x = 3”, y = 1”

TEXT
Job # 

Four-Line Figure Name



N

Satellite Aerial Photograph Showing Site Plan, Equipment Noise Contours, & 
Receiver Locations

Job # S201209.3
Figure 5

Escondido, California 92025
760-738-5570

Eilar Associates, Inc.
210 South Juniper Street, Suite 100

R1

R3

R2

R4

≥ 45 dB

≥ 50 dB

≥ 55 dB

≥ 60 dB

≥ 65 dB

≥ 70 dB

≥ 75 dB

≥ 80 dB

12-foot High Sound Barrier

R5

R6

Receiver Location

Vehicle Location



Appendix A 
Project Plans 



WV

ENTRY
EXIT

UNISEX
MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT ROOM

EL
EC

TR
IC

A
L

FFE 434.30

10'X30' REINF PCC

VEHICLE STALL
CLEAN AIR

VEHICLE STALL
CLEAN AIR

NO PARKING

PARCEL A

PARCEL B

NEW LANDSCAPE AREA

NEW LANDSCAPE AREA

SITE PLAN
SCALE: 1" = 10'-0"



Appendix B 
Pertinent Sections of the City of Lemon Grove Municipal Code 











Appendix C 
Manufacturer Data Sheets 



            Installation Footprint
 Advantage Drying System - 90+ HPw/Dual 

Motor Sides

        Indicates Junction Box LocationJ

J J J

Exit

J

J

System consists of 2 single motor top ducts and 1 set of dual motor side columns.

120in/3048mm

31 in/787mm

24in/610mm

55 in/1397mm

31 in/787mm

60in/1524mm

It has been noted the width of certain newer model trucks and SUVs has become greater.  Depending 
on your wash clientele, it may be necessary to increase the distance between side columns.

123in/3124mm
Standard Height

96in/2438mm
Std clearance

Recommend < 13 ft / 3886mm



August 11, 2016 

Ms. Cheryl Dobie 

Aerodry Systems, LLC 

P.O. Box 907 

Broomfield, Colorado 80038 

Re: Aerodry – Spectral Sound Measurements (DLAA #16-131) Summary Report 

Dear Cheryl, 

The following is a summary of the blower sound level measurements taken at the site on August 

4, 2016.  Attached is Table 1 which is a summary of the 1/3 octave band sound measurements 

taken at the site. 

We measured a variety of configurations with various model numbers that correspond to 

different groupings of dryers.  The system sizes ranging from 45 HP to 120 HP consisted of 

configurations utilizing 1 and 2 overhead towers and 1 set of 6-outlet side columns.. 

Measurements were taken in ANSI-standard 1/3-octave bands between 25 Hertz (Hz) and 20,000 

Hz.  The blowers were located as shown in Figure 1.  Sound measurements were taken outside 

the building at four distances: 1m, 20’, 50’, and 90’ from the exterior edge of the building at 

centerline of the opening as shown in Figure 1. 

Table 1 (enclosed) summarizes the measurements taken at the four measurement locations under 

six different operating conditions as described below Table 1. 

Measurements were taken with a Larson Davis Model 831 Type 1 sound level meter and a PCB 

Piezotronics Model 377B02 condensing microphone.  Immediately prior to measuring, the sound 

level meter’s calibration was checked and recorded.  Calibration was again verified at the 

conclusion of the measurements.  All of our equipment has been calibrated within the 

recommended time period set by the manufacturer.  Documentation verifying measurement 

calibration compliance is available upon request, 

If you have any questions, please call me. 

Sincerely, 

Mick Barnhardt 

Senior Consultant Encl: Figure 1; Table 1 



Figure
Dryer Configuration

Aerodry

8-11-16 Project No.
16-161

Drawn by
MBB

scale: 1/4” = 1’ - 0” 1
1536 Ogden Street Denver, Colorado 80218

303/455-1900    FAX 303/455-9187

acoustics | performing arts | technology

D. L. ADAMS
A S S O C I A T E S

A

B

C

D

1 m

20’

50’

90’

INTERIOR

EXTERIOR

Measurement Positions



T
A

B
LE

 1
: 

 S
o

u
n

d
 M

e
a

su
re

m
e

n
t 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 (
in

 d
B

)

1
/3

 O
ct

a
v

e
 B

a
n

d
 F

re
q

u
e

n
cy

Lo
ca

ti
o

n
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

  
2

5
.0

3
1

.5
4

0
.0

5
0

.0
6

3
.0

8
0

.0
1

0
0

1
2

5
1

6
0

2
0

0
2

5
0

3
1

5
4

0
0

5
0

0
6

3
0

8
0

0
1

0
0

0
1

2
5

0
1

6
0

0
2

0
0

0
2

5
0

0
3

1
5

0
4

0
0

0
5

0
0

0
6

3
0

0
8

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

1
2

5
0

0
1

6
0

0
0

2
0

0
0

0
d

B
A

A
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 1
7

5
7

5
7

6
7

9
7

9
7

8
7

3
7

2
7

6
7

3
6

7
7

5
8

3
8

1
6

6
6

5
6

6
6

5
6

6
6

5
6

5
6

2
6

0
5

9
5

7
5

6
5

5
5

2
4

7
3

9
8

2

B
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 1
6

3
6

7
6

9
7

0
7

4
6

7
6

6
6

1
6

4
6

2
6

0
6

4
7

6
7

1
5

5
5

7
5

5
5

6
5

4
5

6
5

4
5

1
5

1
5

0
4

8
4

6
4

5
4

2
3

6
2

9
7

4

C
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 1
6

0
6

1
6

0
6

4
6

8
6

5
6

2
6

1
5

9
5

7
5

4
5

9
6

8
6

4
5

0
5

0
4

8
5

0
4

9
4

9
4

8
4

5
4

4
4

3
4

0
3

7
3

4
3

0
2

4
1

6
6

7

D
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 1
5

7
5

5
5

7
6

1
6

2
6

3
6

4
5

6
5

3
5

2
4

9
5

5
6

4
5

8
4

5
4

6
4

5
4

5
4

5
4

4
4

3
4

0
3

9
3

7
3

4
3

0
2

7
2

2
1

6
1

0
6

2

A
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 2
6

9
7

3
7

4
7

6
7

9
8

0
8

0
7

4
7

4
7

7
7

3
6

8
7

3
8

1
8

1
7

4
6

6
6

9
6

7
6

7
6

6
6

6
6

3
6

2
6

1
5

9
5

8
5

6
5

3
4

9
81

B
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 2
6

5
6

5
6

8
7

0
7

4
7

0
6

6
6

4
6

5
6

3
5

8
6

6
7

3
7

1
6

0
5

7
5

7
5

7
5

7
5

6
5

7
5

3
5

2
5

1
4

9
4

7
4

6
4

3
3

8
3

0
7

3

C
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 2
6

0
6

0
6

2
6

4
6

9
6

6
6

1
6

1
5

9
5

8
5

3
6

0
6

7
6

5
5

9
5

2
5

1
5

2
5

1
5

0
5

0
4

7
4

5
4

4
4

1
3

9
3

6
3

2
2

6
1

7
6

7

D
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 2
6

1
5

7
5

9
6

4
6

4
6

2
5

9
5

8
5

4
5

4
4

9
5

5
6

2
5

9
4

6
4

8
4

7
4

7
4

7
4

6
4

6
4

1
4

1
3

9
3

6
3

2
2

9
2

3
1

6
9

6
2

A
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 3
7

6
7

6
7

7
7

8
8

0
8

2
7

4
7

6
7

8
7

3
7

1
7

5
8

4
8

0
6

8
6

7
6

9
6

8
6

9
6

7
6

8
6

4
6

3
6

3
6

0
5

9
5

7
5

4
5

1
4

4
8

3

B
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 3
6

5
6

7
6

8
7

0
7

4
7

3
6

6
6

4
6

6
6

3
5

9
6

7
7

7
7

2
5

9
5

8
5

7
5

6
5

7
5

6
5

6
5

4
5

3
5

2
4

9
4

7
4

6
4

2
3

7
2

9
7

5

C
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 3
6

1
6

2
6

3
6

4
6

9
6

8
6

1
6

0
6

1
5

9
5

5
6

2
7

0
6

5
5

1
5

2
5

1
5

2
5

1
5

0
5

0
4

7
4

6
4

5
4

2
3

9
3

6
3

2
2

6
1

7
6

8

D
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 3
5

9
5

8
5

8
6

0
6

3
6

5
5

8
5

8
5

5
5

3
5

1
5

6
6

5
6

0
4

5
4

7
4

6
4

6
4

7
4

5
4

5
4

3
4

1
3

9
3

5
3

2
2

8
2

3
1

6
9

6
3

A
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 4
7

4
7

5
7

6
8

0
8

1
8

0
7

5
7

6
7

8
7

5
6

9
7

2
8

0
8

4
7

3
6

7
7

1
6

9
6

9
6

8
6

8
6

5
6

4
6

2
6

1
5

9
5

7
5

5
5

0
4

2
8

4

B
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 4
6

5
6

5
6

8
7

2
7

5
7

3
6

8
6

6
6

6
6

5
5

9
6

3
7

2
7

4
6

3
5

9
5

8
5

9
5

9
5

9
5

8
5

6
5

4
5

3
5

1
4

9
4

8
4

5
3

9
3

1
7

4

C
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 4
6

1
6

2
6

2
6

6
7

0
6

7
6

3
6

1
6

1
6

0
5

5
5

9
6

5
6

7
5

8
5

2
5

1
5

3
5

3
5

2
5

1
4

9
4

7
4

6
4

3
4

1
3

8
3

4
2

8
1

9
6

8

D
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 4
5

8
5

7
5

9
6

3
6

4
6

4
6

0
5

8
5

6
5

5
5

2
5

4
6

0
6

2
5

8
4

9
4

7
4

8
4

9
4

8
4

6
4

4
4

2
4

1
3

7
3

4
3

0
2

5
1

8
1

1
6

3

A
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 5
7

7
7

7
7

9
8

0
8

4
8

4
7

7
7

9
8

1
7

6
7

3
7

4
8

1
8

3
7

3
6

9
7

3
7

1
7

2
7

1
7

1
6

7
6

6
6

6
6

3
6

2
6

0
5

8
5

4
4

6
8

5

B
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 5
6

8
6

9
7

1
7

2
7

7
7

5
6

9
6

7
6

8
6

5
6

1
6

7
7

5
7

5
6

4
6

1
6

0
6

0
6

1
6

1
6

0
5

7
5

6
5

6
5

3
5

1
5

0
4

7
4

2
3

4
7

6

C
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 5
6

3
6

3
6

3
6

6
7

2
7

0
6

3
6

2
6

3
6

1
5

7
6

1
6

7
6

8
6

0
5

4
5

4
5

5
5

4
5

4
5

3
5

0
4

9
4

8
4

5
4

2
4

0
3

6
3

0
2

1
6

9

D
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 5
5

9
5

9
6

0
6

2
6

4
6

6
6

1
6

1
5

8
5

6
5

1
5

6
6

2
6

3
5

4
4

9
4

9
4

9
5

0
4

9
4

8
4

5
4

4
4

2
3

8
3

5
3

2
2

6
1

9
1

1
6

4

A
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 6
7

6
7

6
7

8
7

9
8

2
8

2
7

5
7

7
7

9
7

4
7

2
7

6
8

3
8

1
7

5
6

8
7

0
6

9
6

9
6

8
6

9
6

5
6

4
6

3
6

1
5

9
5

8
5

5
5

1
4

3
8

4

B
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 6
6

6
6

8
6

9
7

1
7

6
7

4
6

7
6

5
6

7
6

4
6

0
6

8
7

6
7

2
6

3
5

9
5

7
5

8
5

9
5

8
5

8
5

5
5

4
5

3
5

0
4

9
4

7
4

4
3

9
3

1
7

5

C
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 6
6

2
6

2
6

2
6

4
7

1
6

9
6

2
6

0
6

1
5

9
5

6
6

1
6

8
6

4
5

5
5

3
5

2
5

2
5

2
5

1
5

1
4

8
4

7
4

6
4

2
3

9
3

7
3

3
2

7
1

8
6

8

D
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 6
5

8
5

8
5

8
6

2
6

3
6

5
6

0
5

9
5

8
5

5
5

1
5

5
6

3
6

0
5

0
4

8
4

6
4

7
4

8
4

7
4

6
4

4
4

1
4

0
3

6
3

2
2

9
2

4
1

7
1

0
6

3

Lo
ca

ti
o

n
 A

: 
 1

 m
e

te
r 

fr
o

m
 e

xt
e

ri
o

r 
d

o
o

r 
o

p
e

n
in

g
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 1
: 

 M
o

d
e

l 
A

4
5

 

Lo
ca

ti
o

n
 B

: 
 2

0
 f

e
e

t 
fr

o
m

 e
xt

e
ri

o
r 

d
o

o
r 

o
p

e
n

in
g

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 2

: 
 M

o
d

e
l 

A
6

0

Lo
ca

ti
o

n
 C

: 
 5

0
 f

e
e

t 
fr

o
m

 e
xt

e
ri

o
r 

d
o

o
r 

o
p

e
n

in
g

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 3

: 
 M

o
d

e
l 

A
6

0
+

 

Lo
ca

ti
o

n
 D

: 
 9

0
 f

e
e

t 
fr

o
m

 e
xt

e
ri

o
r 

d
o

o
r 

o
p

e
n

in
g

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 4

: 
 M

o
d

e
l 

A
9

0

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 5

: 
 M

o
d

e
l 

A
1

2
0

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 6

: 
 M

o
d

e
l 

A
7

5
 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
re

 e
xc

lu
si

ve
 to

 th
e 

A
dv

an
ta

ge
 D

ry
in

g 
S

ys
te

m
 m

an
uf

ac
tu

re
d 

by
 A

er
od

ry
 S

ys
te

m
s,

 L
LC

.  
U

se
 a

nd
 in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
n 

fo
r o

th
er

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t m

od
el

s 
or

 b
ra

nd
s 

is
 e

xp
re

ss
ly

 p
ro

hi
bi

te
d.

  A
er

od
ry

 S
ys

te
m

s,
 L

LC
 is

 a
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t, 

ce
rti

fie
d 

W
B

E
. 



Appendix D 
CadnaA Analysis Data and Results 



S201209.3 - Lemon Grove Wash N Go - With Barriers

Eilar Associates, Inc.
210 South Juniper Street, Suite 100
Escondido, California 92025-4230
Phone: (760) 738-5570
Date: 14 Jan 2022

Calculation Configuration
Configuration

Parameter Value

General

Country (user defined)

Max. Error (dB) 0.00

Max. Search Radius (#(Unit,LEN)) 2000.00

Min. Dist Src to Rcvr 0.00

Partition

Raster Factor 0.50

Max. Length of Section (#(Unit,LEN)) 1000.00

Min. Length of Section (#(Unit,LEN)) 1.00

Min. Length of Section (%) 0.00

Proj. Line Sources On

Proj. Area Sources On

Ref. Time

Reference Time Day (min) 960.00

Reference Time Night (min) 480.00

Daytime Penalty (dB) 0.00

Recr. Time Penalty (dB) 6.00

Night-time Penalty (dB) 10.00

DTM

Standard Height (m) 0.00

Model of Terrain Triangulation

Reflection

max. Order of Reflection 0

Search Radius Src 100.00

Search Radius Rcvr 100.00

Max. Distance Source - Rcvr 1000.00 1000.00

Min. Distance Rvcr - Reflector 1.00 1.00

Min. Distance Source - Reflector 0.10

Industrial (ISO 9613)

Lateral Diffraction some Obj

Obst. within Area Src do not shield On

Screening Excl. Ground Att. over Barrier

Dz with limit (20/25)

Barrier Coefficients C1,2,3 3.0 20.0 0.0

Temperature (#(Unit,TEMP)) 10

rel. Humidity (%) 70

Ground Absorption G 0.30

Wind Speed for Dir. (#(Unit,SPEED)) 3.0

Roads (TNM)

Railways (Schall 03 (1990))

Strictly acc. to Schall 03 / Schall-Transrapid

Aircraft (???)

Strictly acc. to AzB

Eilar Associates, Inc.



S201209.3 - Lemon Grove Wash N Go - With Barriers

Receivers
Name M. ID Level Lr Limit. Value Land Use Height Coordinates

Day Evening Night Day Evening Night Type Auto Noise Type X Y Z

(dBA) (dBA) (dBA) (dBA) (dBA) (dBA) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft)

East Commercial R1 38.7 38.7 12.0 60.0 55.0 52.5 4.99 r 546.85 480.61 443.36

Southeast (MFR) R2 48.7 48.7 30.9 60.0 55.0 52.5 4.99 r 510.82 387.29 442.55

Southeast (MFR) R3 49.5 49.5 32.7 60.0 55.0 52.5 14.99 r 509.04 370.71 452.47

South (MFR) R4 39.9 39.9 37.6 60.0 55.0 52.5 4.99 r 456.25 386.47 440.24

Southwest (MFR) R5 53.5 53.5 46.9 60.0 55.0 52.5 4.99 r 402.34 386.67 438.69

West Commercial R6 45.8 45.8 42.5 60.0 55.0 52.5 4.99 r 355.81 459.55 434.63

Eilar Associates, Inc.



S201209.3 - Lemon Grove Wash N Go - With Barriers

Point Sources
Name M. ID Result. PWL Lw / Li Correction Sound Reduction Attenuation Operating Time K0 Freq. Direct. Height Coordinates

Day Evening Night Type Value norm. Day Evening Night R Area Day Special Night X Y Z

(dBA) (dBA) (dBA) dB(A) dB(A) dB(A) dB(A) (ft²) (min) (min) (min) (dB) (Hz) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft)

Car Idle 1 71.6 71.6 71.6 Lw Idle 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 (none) 3.00 r 388.68 406.93 436.99

Car Idle 2 71.6 71.6 71.6 Lw Idle 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 (none) 3.00 r 373.97 413.07 436.69

Car Idle 3 71.6 71.6 71.6 Lw Idle 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 (none) 3.00 r 372.14 432.56 436.52

Eilar Associates, Inc.



S201209.3 - Lemon Grove Wash N Go - With Barriers

Vertical Area Sources
Name M. ID Result. PWL Result. PWL'' Lw / Li Correction Sound Reduction Attenuation Operating Time K0 Freq. Direct.

Day Evening Night Day Evening Night Type Value norm. Day Evening Night R Area Day Special Night

(dBA) (dBA) (dBA) (dBA) (dBA) (dBA) dB(A) dB(A) dB(A) dB(A) (ft²) (min) (min) (min) (dB) (Hz)

+ 93.8 93.8 93.8 83.3 83.3 83.3 Lw C3 0.0 0.0 0.0 40.00 40.00 0.00 3.0 (none)

+ 79.7 79.7 79.7 69.2 69.2 69.2 Lw C4 0.0 0.0 0.0 40.00 40.00 0.00 3.0 (none)

Geometry - Vertical Area Sources
Name Height Coordinates

Begin End x y z Ground

(ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft)

10.01 r 504.52 408.49 444.91 434.90

504.35 420.49 444.89 434.88

10.01 r 409.52 408.24 444.01 434.01

409.35 420.25 445.39 435.38

Eilar Associates, Inc.



S201209.3 - Lemon Grove Wash N Go - With Barriers

Barriers
Name M. ID Absorption Z-Ext. Cantilever Height

left right horz. vert. Begin End

(ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft)

South Barrier Wall

East Barrier Wall + 12.01 r

Geometry - Barriers
Name M. ID Absorption Z-Ext. Cantilever Height Coordinates

left right horz. vert. Begin End x y z Ground

(ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft)

South Barrier Wall 502.21 404.44 446.90 434.89

544.27 404.29 446.90 434.89

East Barrier Wall + 12.01 r 544.00 404.10 447.20 435.20

545.78 494.30 448.69 436.68

Eilar Associates, Inc.



S201209.3 - Lemon Grove Wash N Go - With Barriers

Buildings
Name M. ID RB Residents Absorption Height

Begin

(ft)

x 0 20.01 r

x 0

Car Wash x 0 449.44 a

Geometry - Buildings
Name M. ID RB Residents Absorption Height Coordinates

Begin x y z Ground

(ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft)

x 0 20.01 r 489.23 366.37 457.02 437.01

523.41 366.37 457.02 437.01

523.14 313.32 457.02 437.01

490.05 314.14 457.02 437.01

x 0 307.25 471.82 433.07 426.51

349.19 471.82 433.07 426.51

349.74 451.06 433.07 426.51

356.09 451.06 433.07 426.51

356.14 392.97 433.07 426.51

309.90 392.54 433.07 426.51

Car Wash x 0 449.44 a 504.01 433.19 449.44 434.64

503.85 404.43 449.44 434.90

409.79 404.23 449.44 434.01

409.82 421.18 449.44 435.47

405.17 421.08 449.44 433.99

404.79 436.76 449.44 433.99

423.37 437.17 449.44 433.88

423.14 432.91 449.44 433.96

Eilar Associates, Inc.



S201209.3 - Lemon Grove Wash N Go - With Barriers

Terrain Contours
Name M. ID OnlyPts Height Coordinates

Begin End x y z

(ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft)

425 425.00 329.82 505.92 425.00

331.72 511.19 425.00

338.66 514.12 425.00

342.08 511.89 425.00

343.06 525.35 425.00

428 427.99 334.38 482.44 427.99

337.36 490.96 427.99

347.40 493.61 427.99

355.48 504.81 427.99

352.98 484.21 427.99

340.88 483.84 427.99

428 427.99 360.59 511.66 427.99

379.35 516.83 427.99

404.64 527.84 427.99

412.61 531.04 427.99

415.81 535.60 427.99

430 429.99 363.09 501.46 429.99

401.06 516.55 429.99

407.14 510.36 429.99

434.81 516.87 429.99

449.89 523.60 429.99

431 431.00 361.08 489.56 431.00

385.28 486.55 431.00

418.09 501.73 431.00

441.33 506.65 431.00

462.80 513.07 431.00

479.34 525.10 431.00

432 431.99 381.49 482.50 431.99

395.06 482.28 431.99

412.74 490.20 431.99

434.99 490.53 431.99

485.55 506.26 431.99

504.42 519.95 431.99

510.01 519.52 431.99

517.08 529.51 431.99

530.17 538.90 431.99

433 433.01 394.60 477.73 433.01

399.25 480.32 433.01

422.90 479.78 433.01

436.43 470.21 433.01

446.41 474.17 433.01

449.42 481.83 433.01

484.83 487.43 433.01

505.48 491.26 433.01

523.52 500.70 433.01

Eilar Associates, Inc.



S201209.3 - Lemon Grove Wash N Go - With Barriers

Name M. ID OnlyPts Height Coordinates

Begin End x y z

(ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft)

523.38 505.07 433.01

534.73 512.45 433.01

434 433.99 387.78 400.12 433.99

395.10 396.24 433.99

401.74 392.36 433.99

401.82 389.01 433.99

396.05 386.68 433.99

388.47 389.44 433.99

388.13 399.25 433.99

434 433.99 416.39 374.37 433.99

422.25 382.07 433.99

418.99 387.28 433.99

411.07 387.39 433.99

410.75 392.49 433.99

404.02 393.46 433.99

402.72 400.52 433.99

398.59 398.13 433.99

394.90 400.30 433.99

400.44 413.11 433.99

406.51 412.78 433.99

405.54 418.97 433.99

399.68 420.38 433.99

399.24 426.78 433.99

394.69 427.21 433.99

393.38 416.80 433.99

393.93 407.57 433.99

395.66 404.42 433.99

393.17 403.56 433.99

383.51 405.84 433.99

434 433.99 404.21 455.96 433.99

404.04 435.98 433.99

408.35 431.67 433.99

422.63 431.97 433.99

424.14 429.23 433.99

428.92 430.53 433.99

447.52 429.51 433.99

449.43 431.70 433.99

459.76 433.07 433.99

462.08 436.95 433.99

466.82 433.94 433.99

466.60 472.89 433.99

468.99 477.12 433.99

472.03 465.73 433.99

503.50 467.25 433.99

435 435.01 573.21 525.00 435.01

560.98 521.39 435.01

552.80 526.38 435.01

Eilar Associates, Inc.



S201209.3 - Lemon Grove Wash N Go - With Barriers

Name M. ID OnlyPts Height Coordinates

Begin End x y z

(ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft)

544.36 526.29 435.01

435 435.01 452.14 373.75 435.01

451.43 385.31 435.01

453.76 390.30 435.01

447.31 394.59 435.01

436 435.99 549.96 511.27 435.99

556.59 518.20 435.99

562.10 515.96 435.99

574.85 520.78 435.99

435 435.99 454.37 423.59 435.99

459.91 427.48 435.99

429.90 427.14 435.99

412.61 426.73 435.99

410.83 420.10 435.99

436 435.99 472.15 373.58 435.99

471.81 379.87 435.99

468.88 386.58 435.99

471.64 390.37 435.99

474.74 390.81 435.99

480.77 395.11 435.99

437 437.01 548.41 497.85 437.01

556.50 506.57 437.01

561.93 510.36 437.01

573.64 513.98 437.01

437 437.01 487.48 373.32 437.01

482.23 384.00 437.01

485.16 384.35 437.01

505.31 395.50 437.01

521.40 395.80 437.01

528.05 393.73 437.01

537.83 407.70 437.01

438 437.99 548.67 466.28 437.99

550.66 480.49 437.99

561.69 499.52 437.99

572.71 507.53 437.99

438 437.99 531.34 374.48 437.99

532.29 381.45 437.99

526.00 387.40 437.99

532.38 387.14 437.99

536.94 389.12 437.99

538.23 396.53 437.99

543.57 402.04 437.99

439 439.01 551.41 373.79 439.01

543.57 381.11 439.01

543.14 385.16 439.01

551.93 385.33 439.01

555.89 406.86 439.01

Eilar Associates, Inc.



S201209.3 - Lemon Grove Wash N Go - With Barriers

Name M. ID OnlyPts Height Coordinates

Begin End x y z

(ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft)

557.44 432.18 439.01

564.85 453.20 439.01

416.67 442.91 85.94 595.37 416.67

864.65 610.99 442.91

442.91 449.48 818.64 584.95 442.91

806.49 229.02 449.48

449.48 433.07 776.10 233.36 449.48

144.98 222.07 433.07

433.07 416.67 151.05 241.17 433.07

143.24 566.72 416.67

178.12 386.89 419.95

241.93 387.32 419.95

237.15 365.19 419.95

253.21 359.54 419.95

249.74 343.05 423.23

216.75 340.44 419.95

215.01 318.31 423.23

172.04 325.25 419.95

174.65 377.77 416.67

242.36 324.38 426.51

284.03 326.55 433.07

284.03 254.50 429.79

235.85 253.20 426.51

238.89 320.91 426.51

294.45 375.60 426.51

348.27 376.04 429.79

346.10 255.37 429.79

294.01 256.24 429.79

294.88 373.00 426.51

363.03 388.63 433.07

409.47 383.85 433.07

411.21 251.46 433.07

358.25 254.93 433.07

361.29 383.85 433.07

435.01 425.10 368.66 435.01

475.45 368.22 435.01

475.02 256.24 435.01

424.23 258.84 435.01

424.67 361.71 435.01

437.01 488.47 367.36 437.01

534.48 366.92 437.01

534.48 254.93 437.01

485.00 258.41 437.01

487.61 363.88 437.01

554.89 372.13 436.35

594.38 373.87 436.35

594.38 267.52 436.35

Eilar Associates, Inc.



S201209.3 - Lemon Grove Wash N Go - With Barriers

Name M. ID OnlyPts Height Coordinates

Begin End x y z

(ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft)

547.51 267.52 439.63

550.11 368.66 436.35

617.84 377.32 439.63

649.56 377.86 439.63

654.48 270.68 439.63

615.10 276.69 439.63

611.82 370.21 439.63

671.43 376.77 439.63

724.48 375.68 439.63

721.75 258.64 442.91

668.70 260.28 439.63

674.17 360.91 439.63

741.43 378.41 439.63

786.28 378.96 439.63

782.45 266.85 442.91

743.62 263.57 442.91

743.08 374.04 439.63

442.91 12.15 815.00 442.91

970.57 815.00 442.91

965.06 7.45 442.91

5.92 22.61 442.91

10.05 805.35 442.91

434 433.99 532.57 447.56 433.99

539.28 443.77 433.99

542.21 451.18 433.99

542.56 475.29 433.99

Parking Lot 526.42 403.81 434.28

526.64 417.81 434.19

537.49 430.73 434.09

537.16 440.06 433.99

499.19 387.76 437.30

521.33 389.71 437.80

FS East 506.19 417.88 434.91

506.32 402.84 434.91

407.74 401.61 433.99

407.60 418.57 433.99

504.68 419.25 434.91

Retaining wall elevation 408.63 394.70 434.55

527.13 396.21 434.74

527.40 396.22 434.38

538.47 410.00 434.38

538.36 413.47 434.38

543.36 413.15 434.38

543.38 421.45 434.38

543.38 421.86 434.38

543.48 439.04 434.35

543.55 439.45 434.09

Eilar Associates, Inc.



S201209.3 - Lemon Grove Wash N Go - With Barriers

Name M. ID OnlyPts Height Coordinates

Begin End x y z

(ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft)

544.00 484.33 434.74

543.96 484.53 433.79

544.22 504.00 433.86

544.22 504.04 433.43

544.44 522.97 433.43

Retaining Wall Off-site Elevation 408.90 394.29 435.43

527.41 395.80 437.27

527.68 395.81 436.91

538.75 409.59 436.91

538.64 413.06 437.27

543.63 412.74 439.37

543.65 421.04 439.37

543.65 421.45 439.37

543.76 438.63 438.68

543.83 439.04 438.68

544.27 483.92 438.68

544.24 484.12 436.55

544.49 503.59 436.45

544.49 503.63 436.45

544.71 522.56 435.43

355.24 454.86 429.20

355.89 481.70 429.07

341.77 475.53 428.90

362.57 400.54 433.50

359.47 406.95 433.50

359.25 424.31 433.23

359.47 465.01 433.30

550.33 409.56 438.91

550.26 437.14 438.71

Eilar Associates, Inc.



S201209.3 - Lemon Grove Wash N Go - With Barriers

Sound Level Spectra
Name ID Type 1/3 Oktave Spectrum (dB) Source

Weight. 63 125 250 500 1000 2000 4000 8000 A lin

Aerodry C3 Lw (c) A 62.8 69.0 76.2 85.7 86.1 89.3 87.9 79.4 93.8 95.8 Mfr/Cadna Cal

Aerodry Entrance C4 Lw (c) A 48.7 54.9 62.1 71.6 72.0 75.2 73.8 65.3 79.7 81.7 Mfr/Cadna Cal

Mini Van Idle Idle Lw (c) 77.2 74.6 70.2 67.1 66.2 64.0 61.1 58.5 71.6 81.6 Measured

Eilar Associates, Inc.



Appendix E 
Construction Noise Calculations 



Noise Attenuation by Distance Calculation

Job:
Job #:
Date:
Source:
Receiver:

Noise Source

64 at 50 feet

Distances

5 feet at 5 feet above grade
5 feet at 5 feet above grade

67 feet

Path Calculation

67 feet

Sound Pressure Level 61.5 at 67 feet

8

40

57.5

Summation
4

Level during 8 hour day: 73.7

Wash N Go Lemon Grove

12/29/2020
backhoe
Worst-Case

S201209

Noise Level (dBA)

Hours of Use:

Level During 8 Hour day:

Number of Sources:

Source to Receiver Distance:

Source to Receiver Direct Path Distance:

Source Elevation

Receiver Elevation:

Duty Cycle (%):



Noise Attenuation by Distance Calculation

Job: Wash N Go Lemon Grove
Job #:
Date:
Source:
Receiver:

Noise Source

76 at 50 feet

Distances

5 feet at 5 feet above grade
5 feet at 5 feet above grade

67 feet

Path Calculation

67 feet

Sound Pressure Level 73.5 at 67 feet

8

40

69.5

S201209
12/29/2020
front loader
Worst-Case

Hours of Use:

Level During 8 Hour day:

Source to Receiver Distance:

Source to Receiver Direct Path Distance:

Duty Cycle (%):

Noise Level (dBA)

Source Elevation

Receiver Elevation:



Noise Attenuation by Distance Calculation

Job: Wash N Go Lemon Grove
Job #:
Date:
Source:
Receiver:

Noise Source

75 at 50 feet

Distances

5 feet at 5 feet above grade
5 feet at 5 feet above grade

67 feet

Path Calculation

67 feet

Sound Pressure Level 72.5 at 67 feet

8

40

68.5

Hours of Use:

Level During 8 Hour day:

Source to Receiver Distance:

Source to Receiver Direct Path Distance:

Duty Cycle (%):

Noise Level (dBA)

Source Elevation

Receiver Elevation:

S201209
12/29/2020
dump truck
Worst-Case



Noise Attenuation by Distance Calculation

Job: Wash N Go Lemon Grove
Job #:
Date:
Source:
Receiver:

Noise Source

75 at 50 feet

Distances

5 feet at 5 feet above grade
5 feet at 5 feet above grade

67 feet

Path Calculation

67 feet

Sound Pressure Level 72.5 at 67 feet

8

40

68.5

S201209
12/29/2020
excavator
Worst-Case

Hours of Use:

Level During 8 Hour day:

Source to Receiver Distance:

Source to Receiver Direct Path Distance:

Duty Cycle (%):

Noise Level (dBA)

Source Elevation

Receiver Elevation:



Dear Mr. Chopyk: 

The appeal of the Community Manager’s Decision is based on the responses below.  The Eiler Report has 

been updated to include analysis of the noise from the cars idling which concluded no significant impact. 

Attached are letters of support from neighbors and community members. 

Notice of Determination: 

B) The Community Development Manager’s decision is based on the following required findings and

determinations: 

1. The use is compatible with the neighborhood or the community. The land uses surrounding the subject

site include residential structures that are accessed from Pacific Ave. and immediately south of the subject

site. The closest residential structure is approximately 15 feet from the southerly property line of the

proposed car wash site. The proximity of the drive-through to nearby residential structures and the potential

for cars to create disturbing, excessive or offensive noise, car exhaust from idling engines, and stacking of

vehicles causing congestion will result in the use being incompatible with the surrounding neighborhood and

the community.

Response:  
a. Currently, there is a car wash at Massachusetts and Broadway, and at Pacific & Olive directly

next to residential?  Further there are automotive body & repairs and tire stores with rachet
guns adjacent to residential along Broadway.  A precedence exist that the proposed use has
been allowed in this area.

b. Second a noise study has been prepared that concludes that noise is not a significant impact.
c. Car exhaust from vehicles idling is the same for the other similar businesses in the area.
d. The Project proposes more queuing than either of the two existing car washes in the area.

2. The use is not detrimental to the health, safety, convenience or general welfare of persons residing or

working in the vicinity. The proposed car wash will be detrimental to the general welfare of persons residing

in nearby residential structures because their close proximity to the car wash and potential noise impacts

from cars accessing the site and creating disturbing, excessive or offensive noise, car exhaust from idling

engines and stacking of vehicles, causing discomfort or annoyance in accordance with Lemon Grove

Municipal Code Section 9.24.160.

January 25, 2022 

Bill Chopyk 

Interim Community Development Manager 

City of Lemon Grove 

(619) 825-3812

Re: Notice of Decision MUP-210-0002 Appeal

Attachment  C



 

Response: 

a. Currently, there is a car wash at Massachusetts and Broadway, and at Pacific & Olive directly 
next to residential?  Further there are automotive body & repairs and tire stores with rachet 
guns adjacent to residential along Broadway.  A precedence exist that the proposed use has 
been allowed in this area and is not detrimental to the neighborhood.   

b. Second a noise study has been prepared that concludes that noise is not a significant impact.   
c. Car exhaust from vehicles idling is the same for the other similar businesses in the area. 
d. The Project proposes more queuing than either of the two existing car washes in the area. 
e. Attached are support letters from members of the neighborhood who feel that the Project is not 

detrimental to the neighborhood.    
 

3.  The use complies with performance standards according to Section 17.24.080. The applicant submitted a 

noise study (Eilar Associates, Inc. April 28, 2021) confirming the proposed use complies or will be made to 

comply with applicable performance standards; however, cars utilizing the car wash may generate noise that 

exceeds the ambient noise level by more than five decibels or exceed 70 decibels during daytime operations.   

Response:   

The existing ambient noise level today from the roadway and trolley results in 65dBA. (Eiler Table 1) 

The operational noise from the car wash with the sound wall mitigation will not exceed the 55 dBA 

range at any of the receiver locations.  (Eiler Table 5) Noise from the cars idling is estimated at 52 

dBA at 11 feet. (Eiler Table 3).  We question what data indicates that cars utilizing the car wash may 

generate noise that exceeds the ambient noise level by more than five decibels or exceed 70 

decibels during daytime operations.  The Eiler Report concludes: Noise impacts from the proposed 

on-site equipment are not expected to exceed City of Lemon Grove property line noise limits at 

surrounding property lines, as designed. 

4.  The use is consistent with applicable provisions of the particular zoning district and with policies and 

standards of the general plan. Policy 5.5 of the General Plan states. “Promote development that enhances 

and is compatible with the surrounding environs.” The proposed use will generate disturbing, excessive or 

offensive noise from cars, fumes from idling engines, and congestion which will result in the use being 

incompatible with the surrounding residential environs.   

 Response: 

The existing use is allowed by the existing zoning.  As explained in the previous responses, Neither 

the data nor the feedback from the neighbors and community support the conclusion. 

 

In summary, the Applicant believes that they have adequately addressed the issues raised, that they are 

consistent with similar uses nearby, that they are not detrimental to the neighborhood, and that they have 

support from the surrounding neighborhood.  For those reasons, the Applicant request that the Notice of 

Decision 21-12 MUP-210-0002 dated December 21, 2021, be reversed. I will be glad to discuss any of these 

points with you.  Please contact me with any issues. 

Respectfully, 

  
John C. Ziebath 



Attachment C







Attachment C























Attachment C 



























Attachment C





















Attachment  D



Attachment D



Attachment D



 TMo-000-0064 & PDP-170-0003 
 February 28, 2022 

P a g e  | 5 

 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
STAFF REPORT 

Item No.   3. 

Meeting Date:  February 28, 2022 

Submitted to:  Planning Commissioners 

Department:   Community Development Department 

Staff Contact:  Bill Chopyk, Interim Community Development Manager; 

  bchopyk@lemongrove.ca.gov 

Item Title:  Tentative Map No. TM0-000-0064 & PDP-170-0003 Time 
 Extensions 

 
Recommended Action:  Adopt a resolution (Attachment A) entitled, “A Resolution 
of the Planning Commission of the City of Lemon Grove, California, Approving a Time 
Extension of Approved Tentative Map No. TM0-000-0064 and Planned Development 
Permit No. PDP-170-0003”  to construct six (6) condominium units located at 8200 
Hilltop Drive in the Residential Medium High (RMH) zone,” extending the expiration 
date from January 21, 2022 to January 21, 2023. 
 
Summary: On November 25, 2019, the Planning Commission approved Resolution No. 
2019-06 & Resolution No. 2019-07 and on January 21, 2020, the City Council approved 
Resolution No. 2020-3702 & Resolution No. 2020-3703 to construct six (6) 
condominium units on 0.25 acre parcel at 8200 Hilltop Drive.  
 
Discussion:  At this time, the applicant has in process Building Permit No. B20-000-
(640-645), Grading Plans (GRD-020-0006), Stormwater/BMPs Design Plans, 
Landscape Plans (LP2-100-0009) and Fire Department reviews. However, the design 
plans have not been approved nor permits issued and the applicant was not able to satisfy 
all resolution conditions required to commence operations before the January 21, 2022 
expiration date. A one-year time extension will allow the applicant to obtain a building 
permit, complete plan approvals, obtain other required permits, satisfy remaining 
conditions of approval, and complete construction.  
 
Government Code section 66452.6(a)(1) provides that tentative map shall expire 24 
months after its approval or conditional approval, or after any additional period of time 
as may be prescribed by local ordinance, not to exceed an additional 24 months.  Lemon 
Grove Municipal Code section 16.12.070(B) provides that prior to its expiration, an 

mailto:bchopyk@lemongrove.ca.gov


 TMo-000-0064 & PDP-170-0003 
 February 28, 2022 

P a g e  | 5 

 

applicant may file with the planning commission a written application for an extension, 
and the planning commission may, at any time, within ninety days of the expiration of the 
time limit, grant an extension not exceeding the time limits for such extensions specified 
by Section 66425.6 of the Subdivision Map Act.  According, this Tentative Map (TM) 
expires January 21, 2022 (or such longer period as may be approved by the Planning 
Commission of the City of Lemon grove prior to said expiration date not to exceed 24 
months) unless all requirements of this Tentative Map have been met prior to said 
expiration date.     
 
The applicant has applied and is in various stages of City approvals and continues to 
demonstrate progress toward compliance with the TM, but was unable to satisfy all 
resolution requirements by January 21, 2022. A time extension request, dated September 
13, 2021, was submitted prior to the expiration deadline to allow the applicant to complete 
all resolution requirements. There have been no changes to zoning regulations in the 
vicinity of the proposed use that would result in issues of incompatibility with 
surrounding uses. As such, staff recommends the Planning Commission grant a one-year 
extension to the January 21, 2023, expiration date in Section 2, Condition E, pursuant to 
the authority to authorize a longer term reserved to the City Council in the precedent 
condition. 
 
Environmental Review: 

 Not subject to review  Negative Declaration 

 Categorical Exemption, Section 15301  Mitigated Negative Declaration 

Fiscal Impact: None 
 
Public Notification: The Notice of Public Hearing for this item was published in the 
February 18, 2022 edition of the East County Californian and mailed to all property 
owners within 500 feet of the subject property. The City of Lemon Grove received no 
comments in response to the Notice of Public Hearing and Environmental Analysis at the 
time this staff report was prepared. At the time of the public hearing, Staff will provide 
the Planning Commission with any comments received after the date this Staff report is 
prepared.  
 
Staff Recommendation: Adopt a resolution (Attachment A) entitled, “A Resolution 
of the Planning Commission of the City of Lemon Grove, California, Approving a Time 
Extensions of Approved Tentative Map No. TM0-000-0064 and Planned Development 
Permit No. PDP-170-003 to construct six (6) condominium units located at 8200 Hilltop 
Drive in the Residential Medium High (RMH) zone,” extending the expiration date from 
January 21, 2022 to January 21, 2023. This time extension will be conditioned that an 
additional one year time extension (January 21, 2024) may be granted by the Community 
Development Director, subject to making findings that there has been no changes to 



 TMo-000-0064 & PDP-170-0003 
 February 28, 2022 

P a g e  | 5 

 

zoning regulations in the vicinity of the proposed use, existing conditions and/or 
circumstances which informed City Council approval have not changed and the original 
conditions still apply. Unless all requirements of the Tentative Map and Planned 
Development Permit have been met prior to said expiration date.  
 
Attachments:  
Attachment A – Draft Resolution 
Attachment B – Tentative Map No. TM0-000-0064   



 TMo-000-0064 & PDP-170-0003 
 February 28, 2022 

P a g e  | 5 

 

Attachment A 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022- _____ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LEMON 
GROVE, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING A TIME EXTENSION OF  

TENATIVE MAP NO. TM0-000-0064 AND  
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT NO. PDP-170-0003 

 
WHEREAS, on November 25, 2019 the Planning Commission approved 

Tentative Map No. TM0-000-0064 and Planned Development Permit No. PDP-170003 

located at 8200 Hilltop Drive; and 

 WHEREAS, the City found TM0-000-0064 and PDP-170-0003 to be 

categorically exempt from environmental review requirements of the California 

Environmental Quality Act Guidelines (Section 15301, Existing Facilities); and  

WHEREAS, Building Permit B20-000-(640-645) was submitted on November 

9, 2020 for construction of the six (6) condominium units; and 

WHEREAS, the applicant is progressing toward satisfaction of all applicable 

requirements of Tentative Map No. TM0-000-0064 and Planned Development Permit 

No.  PDP-170-0003 as outlined in City Council approval Resolutions No. 2020-3702 and 

No. 2020-3703; and 

WHEREAS, the project has not been modified since the original City Council 

approval; and 

WHEREAS, the existing conditions and/or circumstances which informed City 

Council approval have not changed; and 

WHEREAS, Resolutions No. 2020-3702 and No. 2020-3703 requires the 

satisfaction of all requirements enumerated therein by January 21, 2022, or such longer 

period as may be approved; and   

WHEREAS, Government Code section 66425.6(a)(1) and Lemon Grove 

Municipal Code section 16.12.070(B) allow for the expiration of tentative maps to be 

extended under certain conditions; and 



 TMo-000-0064 & PDP-170-0003 
 February 28, 2022 

P a g e  | 5 

 

WHEREAS, a time extension request, dated September 13, 2021, was submitted 

by the applicant to allow it to complete all resolution requirements. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the 

City of Lemon Grove, California hereby:  

1. Approves a one-year extension of the expiration dates stated in Section 2, 

Condition E in Resolutions No. 2020-3702 and No. 2020-3703 from January 21, 

2022 to January 21, 2023, subject to all other remaining requirements and 

conditions enumerated in Resolutions No. 2020-3702 and No. 2020-3703; and 

2. Authorizes the Community Development Manager, subject to his/her making 

affirmative findings that there have been no changes to zoning regulations in the 

vicinity of the proposed use impacting the development, existing conditions and/or 

circumstances that informed City Council approval have not changed and the 

original conditions still apply, to grant an additional one (1) year time extension 

(until January 21, 2024), unless all requirements of the Tentative Map and Planned 

Development Permit have been met prior to the January 21, 2023 expiration date. 

  

 

 

  



 TMo-000-0064 & PDP-170-0003 
 February 28, 2022 

P a g e  | 5 

 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED on February 28, 2022, the Planning Commission of 

the City of Lemon Grove, California, adopted Resolution No. 2022- _____, passed by the 

following vote: 

 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSENT: 

 ABSTAIN: 

       

      __________________________ 

      Robert “Bob” Bailey, Chair 

Attest: 

 

__________________________ 

Audrey Malone, Planning Commission Clerk 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

__________________________ 

Elizabeth Mitchell, Planning Commission Attorney  

 

 

  



 TMo-000-0064 & PDP-170-0003 
 February 28, 2022 

P a g e  | 5 

 

Attachment B 
Tentative Map No. TM0-000-0064 

\\snafile01\SharedData\clgprograms2\PROJECTS\Hilltop\Hilltop, 0 (6-Unit Town 
Home)\PDP17-0003 & TM0-0064 - 6 Townhouses (7,438 sq. ft.) 

 

 

file://snafile01/SharedData/clgprograms2/PROJECTS/Hilltop/Hilltop,%200%20(6-Unit%20Town%20Home)/PDP17-0003%20&%20TM0-0064%20-%206%20Townhouses%20(7,438%20sq.%20ft.)
file://snafile01/SharedData/clgprograms2/PROJECTS/Hilltop/Hilltop,%200%20(6-Unit%20Town%20Home)/PDP17-0003%20&%20TM0-0064%20-%206%20Townhouses%20(7,438%20sq.%20ft.)











































	Planning Commission Agenda - 02-28-22
	Item 1 - Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 10-25-21
	Item 2 - MUP-210-0002- car wash appeal 2-28-22 PC Staff Report Draft (eam 2-18-22) FINAL am
	Item 2 - MUP-210-0002_car_wash_PC_report_Attachment B
	Item 2 - MUP-210-0002_car_wash_PC_report_Attachment C 1
	Item 2 - MUP-210-0002_car_wash_PC_report_Attachment C 2
	Item 2 - MUP-210-0002_car_wash_PC_report_Attachment C 3
	Item 2 - MUP-210-0002_car_wash_PC_report_Attachment C 4
	Item 2 - MUP-210-0002_car_wash_PC_report_Attachment C 5
	Item 2 - MUP-210-0002_car_wash_PC_report_Attachment D 1
	Item 2 - MUP-210-0002_car_wash_PC_report_Attachment D 2
	Item 2 - MUP-210-0002_car_wash_PC_report_Attachment D 3

	Item 3 - TM0-0064 & PDP 170-0003 2022-1-20 PC Staff Report Draft (eam 2-17-22) FINAL am
	Item 3 - TM0-0064  & PDP 170-0003_PC_Report Attachment B



